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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ: Good morning,

          3  everyone.  And thank all of you that have come out

          4  in such a timely fashion today, I do appreciate it.

          5  We are now trying to get information on the hearing

          6  on the property dispositions, we may have that

          7  hearing today as we have scheduled it, or we may

          8  have to lay it over until December 1st, I will find

          9  that out in about a few minutes.

         10                 The first on the agenda today to be

         11  voted on is L.U. No. 363, Council Member Quinn's

         12  district, M 840260 (C) ZMM, it is a use modification

         13  to previously approved restrictive declaration.

         14                 Olive Koppell's district, Council

         15  Member Koppell, N 000618 NPX, 197-a plan.

         16                 L.U. No. 491, closed 030509 HUQ, it

         17  is a joint application with four applications.  It

         18  is Council Member Sanders' district.  It is

         19  regarding the Arverne Renewal Plan, Arverne by the

         20  Sea.

         21                 One is the Urban Renewal Plan

         22  amendment.

         23                 The second is a zoning map change, C

         24  030510 ZMQ.

         25                 The third is a UDAAP, L.U. No. 493, C
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          2  030511 HAQ.

          3                 L.U. No. 494, which is a City map

          4  change, C 030433 MMQ.

          5                 The next application is L.U. No. 498,

          6  C 030535 HAM; it is Council Member Reed's district.

          7  It is a UDAAP for 44 units, a building for women and

          8  children who are mobility, visually or hearing

          9  impaired.

         10                 Council Member Reyna's district, L.U.

         11  No. 553 was held back before, it is now on the

         12  agenda.  C 030313 PPK, it is a disposition.

         13                 The others are UDAAPs, L.U. No. 516,

         14  L.U. No. 526, and Preconsidered ULURP 20045280 HAX.

         15                 So before we open it up for

         16  questions, Council Member Koppell, is the Council

         17  member whose district of this is in approving of the

         18  application.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Yes, thank

         20  you.  I appreciate your action and the action of the

         21  staff in bringing the 197- a plan to the attention

         22  of the body as quickly as you did. This is something

         23  that the community has been working of for six

         24  years, and we hope that it will now translate into

         25  quick action on some zoning amendments.
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          2                 I also just want to mention that,

          3  though only a small part of the plan has to do with

          4  Council Member Baez's district, Community Board 8 is

          5  in her district as well, and we should recognize

          6  that.

          7                 But thank you, again, for quick

          8  consideration of this.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  She was my next

         10  call.  Council Member Baez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  Thank you.  I

         12  also just wanted to say, just for the record, that

         13  that Community Board 8 does cover a large portion of

         14  my district, and I certainly look forward to being

         15  very much involved in the implementation of this

         16  plan.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Then you are

         19  supportive of the plan.  Right.  Any other comments,

         20  questions?  We are going to vote, yes, Council

         21  Member Quinn.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Yes, I just,

         23  we are going to be voting on an item that the

         24  Subcommittee on Zoning voted on yesterday in my

         25  district, and it is regarding lifting a restrictive
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          2  declaration on a piece of property in the West

          3  Village.  The property was given a restrictive DECA

          4  almost 20 years ago to try to support the meat

          5  market and prevent other uses from coming into the

          6  meat market.  The owners of the property have had,

          7  been unable to rent it to a meat market use.  What

          8  we are going to do is open it up and allow them

          9  greater uses, retail, restaurant, et cetera, to go

         10  into that space.

         11                 The neighborhood did have some

         12  concerns that there not be a dance club there or

         13  rooftop eating or bar in the building, if it goes to

         14  become a restaurant.  The owners have agreed to

         15  that.

         16                 The residents also had concerns that

         17  if an office went into that space that the building

         18  might be built out to a much larger height.  It is

         19  particularly problematic because right next store to

         20  it is a nursery school that has a back yard for the

         21  children.  So we modified what City Planning sent

         22  us, and we are allowing the owner to have all of the

         23  use group six options which are presently

         24  prohibited, except we are going to continue to keep

         25  office space prohibited there.
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          2                 And I want to thank the Chair, the

          3  Subcommittee, and Chris and Pat and Amy for all of

          4  their help in coming up with a compromise that I

          5  think is fair and within our ability to do at this

          6  point.  And I hope the full Committee can support

          7  it, and again, I want to thank the staff and the

          8  Chair for their help yesterday.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you.  Any

         10  other comments? All right, if the clerk will call

         11  the roll.

         12                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Katz.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Aye on all.

         14                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Perkins.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Aye on all.

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Nelson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON:  Aye on all.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Quinn.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Aye on all.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Rivera.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA:  Aye on all.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Avella.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER AVELLA:  Aye on all.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Baez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ:  Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Felder.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Pass.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Koppell.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Madam Chair,

          6  we are not taking up the first item, right?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  No, there is not a

          8  vote on that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Right.  Aye

         10  on all other items on the calendar.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Martinez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Aye on all.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  McMahon.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCMAHON:  Aye on all.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Vann.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  Aye on all.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Felder.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  Aye on all.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Just so that the

         20  Committee knows, we are running into some technical

         21  difficulties with the first item that we were

         22  supposed to have a hearing on today.  Is there

         23  anybody here to testify on the disposition of

         24  property bill?  No.

         25                 Okay, we are running into technical
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          2  issues, I am going to come back after making a phone

          3  call in about three minutes, all right, and let you

          4  know the status of that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  What status

          6  report?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Of the hearing,

          8  there is no one here to testify.  Apparently, the

          9  people that are testifying are on their way.  I want

         10  to know how long they are going to be, otherwise we

         11  may postpone the hearing until December 1st.  So let

         12  me just, yes, ACORN.  Well give me three minutes and

         13  I will come right back, thank you very much.

         14                 (Recess taken).

         15                 They are now just getting off the

         16  Brooklyn Bridge. There apparently was a

         17  miscommunication in the time.  I do not think we

         18  ever had such a quick Land Use meeting even when we

         19  tried. So therefore, they were not prepared to be

         20  here at 10:00 exactly. So they are also bringing

         21  some advocates and the head of the Housing Director

         22  for ACORN.  If everyone could just stay another 10

         23  minutes for the testimony, I cannot imagine it is

         24  going to be very long.  Thank you.

         25                 (Recess taken.)

                                                            11

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  Council Member

          3  Barron, how do you vote?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON:  Aye on all.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK CHERRY:  The vote now

          6  stands at 14 in the affirmative.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  We will give the

          8  people testifying a moment to catch their breath.

          9                 This hearing is now resumed.  I first

         10  want to thank my colleagues for staying.  There was

         11  a mix up in some of the time, and for that, I am

         12  sure, we all apologize, especially our office. And

         13  thank them for getting here so quickly.

         14                 As many of you know, hold on a

         15  second.  Charles is always getting into trouble,

         16  Matt.  All right, as many of you know Intro. 517,

         17  and just to give the testifiers a moment to catch

         18  their breath, I will explain a little bit about the

         19  bill, and then let those folks testifying explain a

         20  little more about the reason for the legislation,

         21  and just some thoughts on it by their Housing

         22  experts.

         23                 This basically would revamp the way

         24  that we do dispositions of vacant lands.  When the

         25  City disposes of land, if there is not a, first,
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          2  affordable housing guideline, and two, a development

          3  timetable for that affordable housing guideline,

          4  this would change the presumption to passing it, to

          5  deeming it disapproved, unless the Council votes on

          6  it.

          7                 So it is a marked change in the way

          8  that we would be doing public dispositions.  It is

          9  Council Member Perkins' bill, so I would like him to

         10  say a few words before we ask those people

         11  testifying, go ahead, Bill.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS:  Yes, I will

         13  be brief, I just want to, first, extend my

         14  appreciation to you as the Chair of this Committee

         15  for bringing this before us.  It is a major piece of

         16  legislation that has, I think, very positive and

         17  significant implications for not simply the land use

         18  process, but for the housing crisis that we have in

         19  our City.

         20                 To his credit, the Mayor has

         21  recognized that crisis, and I think that this

         22  legislation helps us in understanding some

         23  manifestations of it.  Particularly, when we are

         24  looking at City owned property, vacant City- owned

         25  property, and trying to make sure that what is
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          2  developing that property is truly affordable from

          3  the perspective of our constituents of what is in

          4  their pockets that makes something affordable.

          5  Unfortunately, what we use as affordability tends to

          6  be above and beyond what our constituents generally

          7  can reach.

          8                 This is not a problem unique to the

          9  Harlem's of the City or to the low- income

         10  communities, it is something that we have all, in

         11  this Council, to some extent experienced.  And so we

         12  are looking for a way to get closer to what is truly

         13  affordable to the people that we represent.  When we

         14  decide to dispose of property, we want to make sure

         15  that it has some bearing on the needs of the

         16  community where the property exists.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  And just to add to

         19  my explanation of the bill, which I was really

         20  trying to stall for time as well as everything else.

         21    There is a definition of affordable in this piece

         22  of legislation, which shall mean no more than 30

         23  percent of the household income is spent on rental

         24  expenses, and in the sale of house it would be the

         25  mortgage, interest, taxes, and so on and so forth,
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          2  it is in your legislation.

          3                 But whoever is testifying today, if

          4  they could also comment on their thoughts on the

          5  definition of affordable housing, it would be

          6  appreciated.

          7                 Testifying is Bertha Lewis from

          8  ACORN, no, and- -

          9                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Ismene Speliotis from

         10  ACORN Housing.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you very

         12  much.  If you could just repeat your name once more.

         13                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Ismene Speliotis.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Okay, and you

         15  could bring that microphone over, that is okay.

         16  There you go, thank you, please start.

         17                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Thank you, and we

         18  apologize, and thank you for waiting for us.  I am

         19  the Housing Director and the Director of the New

         20  York ACORN Housing Company, which is the housing arm

         21  of New York ACORN.  We own, develop, and manage over

         22  700 units of very, very affordable housing in New

         23  York City.  So thank you very much for hearing us.

         24                 The City's options of vacant

         25  residential land blight low- income communities and

                                                            15

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2  squander the City's most valuable resource for

          3  creating affordable housing.  This must stop.

          4                 What are the facts?  Since 1996, the

          5  City has sold 1,350 vacant lots in ten

          6  neighborhoods, and the average median income in

          7  those particular neighborhoods is $21,688.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Can I interrupt

          9  you for one second?

         10                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  If the Sergeant-

         12  At- Arms could distribute the testimony, I believe,

         13   --  It was distributed. Does everybody have it on

         14  their desk.

         15                 SERGEANT- AT- ARMS:  They did not

         16  have enough.

         17                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Oh, okay.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Can we get someone

         19  to go out and copy?  How many is missing?  Please

         20  continue.

         21                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  So in the

         22  neighborhoods with 1,350 vacant lots, over 1,350

         23  vacant lots have been sold since 1996, the median

         24  income in those particular neighborhoods is $21,688,

         25  almost half of the City's median income.  This is
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          2  more than 60 percent of the vacant land the City

          3  sold in this period.  Almost two- thirds of the land

          4  the City has auctioned since 1996 remains vacant,

          5  and many vacant lots are used for vehicle storage,

          6  parking lots, and other non- productive uses.

          7  Samples of the auctioned land indicate that as much

          8  as 60 percent is in moderately or seriously blighted

          9  condition.

         10                 Even when the City uses vacant land

         11  to build housing, it ignores working families.  From

         12  1997 to 2000, only 21 percent of City subsidized new

         13  construction was for families making less than

         14  $50,000, and only 7 percent, if you exclude homeless

         15  housing.  Contrast this with the average median

         16  income of $21,688 for the neighborhoods in which the

         17  vacant land is concentrated.

         18                 Why did this happen?  The City

         19  imposes no development requirements at all on buyers

         20  at auction, let alone requiring buyers to build

         21  affordable housing.  As a result, bidders can buy

         22  land cheaply and warehouse it in anticipation of

         23  rising prices while working families in these

         24  communities face an affordable housing crisis.  The

         25  buyers also get away without maintaining their lots.

                                                            17

          1  COMMITTEE ON LAND USE

          2    The failure of the auctions is easy to see in a

          3  tour of the focused neighborhoods.

          4                 In addition, when the City builds

          5  housing, it uses the statistical area median income

          6  to determine beneficiaries of subsidized projects,

          7  if it imposes any income limits at all.  AMI

          8  includes the City's five boroughs, as well as higher

          9  income Westchester, Putnam, and Rockland Counties.

         10                 And just to throw a number that is

         11  not in the testimony, that number in 2003 is at

         12  52,0000.  But more importantly in 2002 it was

         13  62,000, and for many of the City's program, because

         14  there was an anomaly, they have been using the

         15  higher number. Okay, because they did not like the

         16  52,000, and so they chose to use the 62,000, even

         17  though the numbers came out at 52,000.

         18                 Accordingly, AMI is 62 percent higher

         19  than the City median income.  When you look at an

         20  analysis of the City's median incomes, it is

         21  $38,000.  And it stayed at about that number over

         22  the last couple of years, if you look at reports.

         23  NYU does these studies annually that actually

         24  document these numbers.  The City's median and

         25  almost three times higher than the average median
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          2  income for focused neighborhoods.  So the

          3  neighborhoods of Central Brooklyn the neighborhoods

          4  of the Bronx, the neighborhoods of Northern

          5  Manhattan.  As a result, when the City dedicates a

          6  fraction of its subsidized new construction projects

          7  to families making 80 percent of AMI, there is no

          8  assurance that any of the units go to working

          9  families in these neighborhoods.

         10                 How does Bill 517 change the City's

         11  policies?

         12                 First, under the bill, the City will

         13  dedicate the remaining vacant land it owns to

         14  affordable housing development by imposing

         15  development conditions when it transfers property.

         16  The intent is to end the current auction policy and

         17  encourage HPD to package the vacant land for

         18  responsible affordable housing development.

         19                 Past experience of this organization,

         20  of New York ACORN Housing Company and its

         21  subsidiaries, together with private developers show

         22  that housing can be built on scattered site parcels

         23  in a cost- effective manner, and that clusters of

         24  these affordable properties help build community, we

         25  have examples of this.
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          2                 In fact, we have built over 500 units

          3  on various scattered site properties throughout

          4  Brooklyn.  Some of the most affordable housing in

          5  the City is owned by New York ACORN Housing Company.

          6    We are presently in the midst of a joint

          7  private/nonprofit venture that is developing homes

          8  for sale on scatter site parcels and we have a

          9  proposal for the use of scattered site vacant land

         10  that presently sits vacant and rubble filled in East

         11  New York, before HPD.

         12                 Second, the bill requires that the

         13  City base development conditions on the income of

         14  City residents generally, without including the

         15  irrelevant suburban counties, which are part of the

         16  AMI, as well as the income of residents in the

         17  communities in which the housing is built.  In a

         18  neighborhood like Brownsville, with the median

         19  income well below City median income, the cap would

         20  be twice neighborhood median.  In the neighborhood

         21  with median incomes higher than the City median, the

         22  cap would be twice the City median.  This enables

         23  the City to build housing for middle income families

         24  while ensuring that the City's land also helps the

         25  working families most in need.
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          2                 We urge the Council to say enough is

          3  enough and adopt Bill 517.  The bill does not change

          4  the fact that the City has squandered a huge

          5  opportunity to address its affordable housing crisis

          6  over the last decade.  But enough City- owned land

          7  remains to make a difference.  We owe it to the

          8  working families of the City to reverse a disastrous

          9  policy and build affordable housing on the land the

         10  City still owns.

         11                 For backup and reference purposes, we

         12  have submitted to you the Executive Summary and the

         13  ACORN report that was issued, I think maybe you

         14  already have it from February of 2003 Neighborhoods

         15  for Sale.

         16                 We thank you very much, and we would

         17  be very happy to answer your questions.  And Bertha

         18  would like to add something, first.

         19                 MS. LEWIS:  I am going to make one

         20  additional comment about Intro. 517.  When we

         21  crafted this legislation, we did look at some

         22  background and some precedent to this.  The Charter

         23  Section No. 384, in fact, limits the disposal of

         24  City property through the public auction process.

         25  This section also includes a provision "any
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          2  conveyance or lease may provide for the restriction

          3  for the use of such real property," so it is not

          4  something that you would be doing that does not have

          5  precedent.

          6                 A direct development program as early

          7  as the 1990s, the City of New York through the

          8  Division of Real Property, DRP, offered parcels

          9  through auctions that facilitated housing

         10  development.  The program had special conditions of

         11  sale to ensure that there would be development.  The

         12  program set out deadlines, a timetable for new

         13  development, and the program had successful bidders

         14  eligible for City mortgages.

         15                 In addition, Charter Section 824

         16  grants the DCAS Commissioner the power to dispose of

         17  City's real property in the manner in which we are

         18  laying out in Intro. 517.  If you want to have any

         19  other references to the Administrative Code, you can

         20  look at Sections 4- 106, 107, 108, 109, 110, and

         21  111.  All of these sections of the Administrative

         22  Code do refer to background and precedent for Intro.

         23  517.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you.  What
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          2  is your position.

          3                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  I am the Director of

          4  the New York ACORN Housing Company and the Mutual

          5  Housing Association, which is the development arm.

          6  It is a separate, 501- C- 3 not- for- profit housing

          7  company.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Okay.

          9                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  And related to ACORN.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  I am just

         11  wondering whether some of my questions, whether you

         12  can answer some of them, but if not, you guys might

         13  get back to us, if not.

         14                 If anybody here would like to

         15  testify, please sign in with the Sergeant- At- Arms

         16  so that we can get your names, and whether you are

         17  for or against the legislation that is before.

         18                 Bertha maybe you might be the better,

         19  maybe the person to ask this, I am curious as the

         20  Charter requires that the Council actually be an

         21  affirmative vote of the members entitled to vote, I

         22  mean that is in the Charter.  Is ACORN envisioning a

         23  Charter Referendum or you are just envisioning just

         24  this piece of legislation?

         25                 MS. LEWIS:  No, I mean, we referred
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          2  to the Charter so that this Committee could know

          3  that this legislation that we are proposing is on

          4  solid ground and that it is not unprecedented that

          5  we would limit and put restrictions on the

          6  disposition of real property.  We would like for

          7  Intro. 517 to be voted on affirmatively by this

          8  Committee, come out of Committee and come before the

          9  full Council so that it can get a real vote.

         10                 I think we have over 35 sponsors of

         11  this legislation with Council Member Perkins in the

         12  lead.  So we feel as though if this Committed

         13  actually looks at this legislation and says, this

         14  should be voted out, this should go to the floor, we

         15  feel very confident that in any negotiations we have

         16  the votes to override any, maybe imagined veto that

         17  the Mayor might have.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Oh yea of little

         19  faith.  Ismene, maybe you can answer this question

         20  for me.  A lot of times when we do HPD disposition,

         21  we do not know who we are transferring the property

         22  to.  We basically dispose or give the right to HPD

         23  to dispose of the property.  How do you envision

         24  this legislation working, if we do not know who we

         25  are disposing the property to?
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          2                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  I think that--

          3                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Counsel is

          4  reminding me the question, in terms of how do you

          5  apply the affordability standard?

          6                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Right, it actually

          7  gets recorded into the transfer documents of the

          8  property.  So, and we are actually familiar with

          9  this, we have property with restrictions on it.  And

         10  then so if you try to sell, or when you go to get

         11  the development dollars to put a mortgage on it, it

         12  actually is of record of when you run the title

         13  search.  So that it cannot be like, sure, I will

         14  sign that.  It actually shows up for the record. And

         15  so it is a kind of a heads up, right, if you go to

         16  auction and you want to buy, and it is written.  You

         17  know in the old days in the auction books, it used

         18  to be right in there in the book.  It used to say,

         19  there is a development requirement here that within

         20  two years you need to have a certificate of

         21  occupancy.  And it is there as information, and then

         22  it is actually in the documents that ultimately get

         23  recorded.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  So you are

         25  envisioning the City making this agreement, not the
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          2  developer.  You are envisioning the City basically

          3  making it as part of their disposition that this

          4  will, a) be affordable housing, and b) the other

          5  issue, the timetable.

          6                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  And the timetable for

          7  development, right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  You are not

          9  envisioning the developer making that agreement who

         10  buys it.  You are envisioning the City making that

         11  agreement to only sell it to those that would agree

         12  to that.

         13                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Right.  It is

         14  actually up front.  If you are going to buy this,

         15  these are the rules that you abide by, and you guys

         16  make the rules, you, the City Council.

         17                 MS. LEWIS:  And I just say, in many

         18  of the parcels, I mean, we have been looking at

         19  this, it took us over a year and a half to do this

         20  study, we used the City's records.  We talked to

         21  many, many developers for profit, not- for- profit,

         22  and inevitably one after the other will say to you,

         23  hey, we are playing by the rules.  This is, you

         24  know, HPD does not require us to do anything, so

         25  that, you know, we sat on this parcel of land in
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          2  East New York and in Brownsville for eight years,

          3  and we waited until we decided that the market was

          4  favorable.  We built a $500,000 home, even though

          5  people here only make $25,000.  Hey, HPD said it was

          6  fine, we are playing by the rules.  So that is why

          7  we want to make sure HPD puts these restrictions up

          8  front so that people know what they are buying and

          9  that they have to comply.  If they do not comply,

         10  then the disposition of the property could revert

         11  back to the City.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  So just, I do not

         13  mean to belabor it, but just I am trying to be clear

         14  of it.  So when HPD does the disposition, when they

         15  issue their RFP, basically they are saying only

         16  those companies that have been organized exclusively

         17  to develop housing projects can answer the RFP,

         18  basically.  Otherwise, it will come here as a

         19  disapproval, unless we vote in the affirmative.

         20                 MS. LEWIS: That basically is what it

         21  is.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  I am just trying

         23  to get what you are envisioning.

         24                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  If HPD, I mean this

         25  would be for properties.  I mean there is two parts
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          2  to the legislation, and correct me if I am wrong,

          3  one idea really would be that the auction just

          4  stops, right, and that those, that there is a real

          5  understanding by the City Council, since there seems

          6  to be some limited understanding by the agencies

          7  themselves, that this is a huge resource.  And even

          8  on a scattered, the reason that we inserted language

          9  that we are doing it now, because, you know, the

         10  various excuses that have been used over the years

         11  is it generates income.  You know, for a City hungry

         12  for money, that it is undevelopable, and in fact,

         13  that is not true.  And developers, for profit and

         14  not- for- profit developers, especially in a time of

         15  limited resources become very, very creative.  And

         16  so scatter site maybe long ago, I mean think of the

         17  Partnership Homes, everyone is familiar with

         18  Partnership.  When Partnership started, the

         19  requirement by the Partnership that they needed to

         20  have kind of a block face to build.  Right, we would

         21  not build with less then, they would not build with

         22  less than 10, you could put 10 houses in a row.

         23                 As the City land became more and more

         24  cut up, and less available in those kind of very

         25  nice, comfortable, large parcels, they said, oh,
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          2  four in a row.  Oh we will do four in a row, and

          3  then we will do one across the street.  So, in fact,

          4  they understood that it was possible even when what

          5  they wanted ideally, no builder wouldn't say I want

          6  it all in a row.  But the fact of the matter is that

          7  that is not what is left anymore, because it has

          8  been given away.

          9  So you do not have to be, you do not have to be, I

         10  mean, you would have to have the ability to put

         11  together a housing project that met the timetable

         12  and the affordability requirements, and you would

         13  think about that as a for- profit or not- for-

         14  profit before you bid, if those parcels made it to

         15  auction.

         16                 Does that answer your question?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Somewhat, yes.

         18                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  We are still not --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  That is all right.

         20    I would like to call on Councilman Koppell.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Good

         22  morning.  I am quite sympathetic to your goals here.

         23    And my question or my comment really is more in

         24  line of trying to help to make something workable,

         25  because this is difficult.  And I think we have a
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          2  problem, I do not have such a problem with the first

          3  part, which requires that these conditions be

          4  attached to the disposition.  I think that is okay,

          5  you know, I think there is good reason for that

          6  requirement.

          7                 However, in an attempt to enforce

          8  that, you have a sentence here that is, I think,

          9  very problematic because it says, "if after such

         10  disposition, such development conditions are not

         11  adhered to, title to such real property shall there

         12  upon become vested in the City, and any consequent

         13  disposition shall be made pursuant to the provisions

         14  of this Chapter."  The problem with that, is that,

         15  who decides that issue and when is it decided?  And

         16  you are placing here a restriction or a provision

         17  that will cloud the title of this property forever

         18  more.  That has to be worked out.

         19                 What I would suggest is something

         20  where the City shall have the right within a certain

         21  time frame to bring an action in the court to revert

         22  title to the City.  And then if there is a time

         23  frame and the City has a right to do it, then if the

         24  City does not do it, title will rest.  Because you

         25  need to have quiet title, otherwise nobody is going
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          2  to buy these properties.  Because there will always

          3  be a question, or always could be a question are the

          4  developing conditions met.  I mean, you know, the

          5  number of units, the size of the units, the type of

          6  units, what they are sold for, I mean, there could

          7  be arguments over that.  So you have got to do

          8  something about that section and make sure we can

          9  convey quiet title.

         10                 And if you fix that, the basic idea

         11  here of having development conditions is a good one,

         12  and I would certainly support it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  That is a good

         14  point, Councilman, thank you.  Council Member Quinn.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  The thing,

         16  well I forget the exact name of it, with where it is

         17  the five boroughs and the suburban counties?

         18                 MS. SPELIOTIS:   Statistical, SMAI it

         19  is called.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay, there

         21  you go.  Is there some HUD requirement or something

         22  that mandates that we follow that amount of money,

         23  or you know, that average, is there something beyond

         24  our control that ties us to that?

         25                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Our understanding is
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          2  no, okay.  The HUD cuts, you know, the country up

          3  into these regions.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right.

          5                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  And for reason, you

          6  know, I don't know if it by geography, whatever, it

          7  is extremely weird, right? We include Rockland and

          8  Putnam, Nassau is by itself.  Okay, it is very, it

          9  is just peculiar.  And then Suffolk is, again, by

         10  itself. Okay?

         11                 So the idea would be when HUD

         12  dispositions, if you have HUD federal passthrough

         13  dollars, which the City uses, those have caps.

         14  Okay, so various dollars, like home dollars have

         15  caps up to 50 percent, but it is the Statistical

         16  Median Income.  If the City wanted to say, because

         17  of who our people our and our population is, we want

         18  that number to be pushed down, there is nothing that

         19  doesn't allow you to push it down.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.

         21                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  We just cannot go

         22  over it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  We cannot go

         24  over it.

         25                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Right.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So there is no

          3  floor, there is a ceiling.

          4                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Right, there is a

          5  ceiling on those dollars.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  We just, for

          7  whatever reason, just have always used this?

          8                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Right, because I mean

          9  it is just written that way, and it is easier,

         10  right, it is easy.  But in fact because there is

         11  already, and you have these independent reports that

         12  document median income that is separate and smaller

         13  units that is much more pertinent to the Council,

         14  you know, to us as City residents, and it is

         15  available.  And they do those studies annually that

         16  ties to SMAI, and then here is median incomes by

         17  neighborhood that average into the city.  These

         18  stats, statistics are available, and we just have

         19  not used them.

         20                 MS. LEWIS:  We have asked HPD what is

         21  the reasoning behind using that figure?  And the

         22  answer that we get is sort of a round Robin, well,

         23  HUD does it.  Well, HUD says that you don't have to

         24  do it.  Well we do it because HUD does it.

         25                 So, in fact, the reason why we keep
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          2  referring back to the Charter is that, in fact, HPD,

          3  DCAS, does have extraordinary discretion and they

          4  could use it, again that this means that this is a

          5  cap, they do not have to use that in the programs.

          6  And in fact, in other programs they have changed the

          7  income guidelines, it is just sort of arbitrary and

          8  political.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Have you had,

         10  I am sure you have, conversations with HPD or DCAS

         11  about the, you know, ideas around disposition, and

         12  if you could kind of tell us a little bit about what

         13  their response has been?  I mean I am sure it was

         14  not embracing, but if you could maybe share with us

         15  some of the reasons they gave you for concerns or

         16  objection.

         17                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  I mean it is very

         18  interesting and I think that the problem is that we

         19  have many conversations with folks at HPD, and there

         20  are many folks there, right?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right.

         22                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  And so there could be

         23  an Assistant Commissioner and Deputy Commissioner

         24  level people that are very predisposed in this

         25  direction.  But the agency as an agency has not kind
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          2  of embraced these positions.  Okay?

          3                 I think there is, and we have these

          4  conversations all the time.  We talk about limited

          5  resources, whether it is subsidy dollars, which is a

          6  different bill, or you know the land, which is a

          7  subsidy and it is a real resource.  We believe that

          8  those are used in two ways by City government.

          9                 One is an economic catalyst, okay, so

         10  you know, the City spurs development where private

         11  folks and private dollars without going hand- in-

         12  hand where the City may not go.  And we have seen

         13  this, we have seen this in the South Bronx, you

         14  know, below Fordham Road, in the mid- eighties under

         15  Mayor Koch.  And we have seen it with Partnership,

         16  you know, we have seen it with the various places.

         17  So that would be one use of public dollars, and that

         18  is one argument.

         19                 The problem is the idea, the point of

         20  that argument is that at some point the private

         21  sector feels comfortable.  Right? You have invested

         22  public dollars, you have opened those doors, and

         23  suddenly, look at the banks in CRA, they thought

         24  that poor people could not become homeowners.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Right, right.
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          2                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Right?  And now this

          3  is a great bet for them, everyone wants to lend to

          4  people in LMI, in low- and moderate- income census

          5  tracks, right?  Every bank does it, and they make

          6  money, and those mortgages do not foreclose at any

          7  faster rate than wealthy people.

          8                 So the second position would be that

          9  City resources whether direct subsidy or land, are

         10  actually very scarce and should be used for people

         11  in greatest need.  Okay, so we have the economic

         12  catalyst, and then we have need.  So the idea would

         13  be that those are both good.   So if you use the

         14  City's dollars to open up neighborhoods, and private

         15  dollars followed, at some point you would think that

         16  that pendulum would then swing back, once you opened

         17  up that neighborhood and went back as a resource to

         18  the most needy people.  And that is where it does

         19  not happen, okay?  That somehow monolithic,

         20  principles, philosophy, who knows what, that

         21  pendulum does not swing, and so those dollars keep

         22  going out to private developers with no income

         23  limits in the name of economic catalyst, even though

         24  it is actually no longer necessary, and then that

         25  resource lost to the folks that we are talking
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          2  about.  Does that make --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Yes,

          4  generally, thank you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Council Member

          6  Martinez.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

          8  Madam Chair. I just have one, the vacant lot that

          9  Intro. 517 would apply would be only to those that

         10  are owned by HPD, or in general, every vacant lot in

         11  the City of New York?

         12                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Every City- owned

         13  vacant lot in the City of New York.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So what

         15  impact will, for example, when EDC owns a lot for

         16  economic development purposes, or when HPD owns a

         17  lot and transferred it over to EDC for economic

         18  development, what impact will 517 have on that?

         19                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Right, I think the

         20  idea, the legislation, and maybe Councilwoman Katz

         21  can, you know, clarify, the idea would be that the

         22  City really looks at its land as the resource that

         23  it is.  And they are doing it now in terms of brown

         24  fields, economic development.  And then if they

         25  decided it has a residential use, okay, then, and
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          2  that would be first and foremost priority,

          3  especially, I mean, they are zoned all different,

          4  they are zoned residential, they are zoned

          5  manufacturing, so we are not saying - -

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So 515

          7  (sic)  would only apply - -

          8                 MS. SPELIOTIS: Five seventeen.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Sorry, 517

         10  will only apply to those lots that are zoned

         11  residential.

         12                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Zoned residential or

         13  under discussion, we're under discussion with the

         14  Council, as you all know, around these zoning

         15  issues, zoning changes.  So we have been talking,

         16  and we are part of that Committee of for- profit and

         17  not for- profit groups talking about that.  So

         18  either land that is already zoned residential, or

         19  the City together with HPD and its other agencies is

         20  looking for potential residential use.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Okay.  No,

         22  I asked the question because when you have a lot, as

         23  you know, an empty lot that goes through the process

         24  of an auction, when you are talking about and

         25  economic development project or an economic
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          2  development working with EDC, it does not go through

          3  the same process.

          4                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Right.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So when we

          6  are talking about 517, we are not talking about all

          7  the lots that are vacant, we are only talking about

          8  lots that are zoned for residential.

          9                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Or being considered

         10  for change towards residential.

         11                 MS. LEWIS:  Now we would like in this

         12  legislation, we are trying to get at not only HPD

         13  zoning for residential, but unless we stop the

         14  auction now, this is all moot, because it will all

         15  be gone.  And we will not be talking about anything.

         16                 So the thing is you have got to put a

         17  heart to this and moving forward, if there are large

         18  parcels of lands that are going to be rezoned out of

         19  manufacturing to residential, or if there is going

         20  to be mixed use, we want to make sure that that mix

         21  use includes affordability.

         22                 I mean right now, for instance, in

         23  Downtown Brooklyn where we come from, there is a

         24  huge economic development plan to take slops and

         25  slops of land that under EDC this, the EDC has no
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          2  accountability to this kind of plan.  This would, in

          3  fact, take EDC, HPD, and all these City agencies

          4  that have to do with the disposal of real property,

          5  they would have to come under this.  So that, at

          6  least, we could make some sense, because right now

          7  you have a mishagosh (phonetic), it might be over

          8  here, it might be over here, or it might be over

          9  here.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  All right.  I

         11  would actually like to follow- up on Council Member

         12  Martinez, that was actually where I was going with

         13  questioning as well.  That was a very good question.

         14  I think that we are just trying to get the technical

         15  aspects of the bill.  I think that, you know, the

         16  idea of crating affordable housing is one that all

         17  of us have been fighting for on almost every

         18  rezoning that we do, in almost every HPD disposition

         19  that affordable housing was possible.  And as you

         20  know, the City Council has negotiated with the

         21  Mayor's Office to spend already millions of dollars

         22  so far on two rezonings that we did.  You go six

         23  million on one, and three million on another, or

         24  four million on East Harlem. So we are very much

         25  involved with that fight as well.
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          2                 But in this legislation, I am just

          3  curious, you said not zoned for residential but sort

          4  of in the pipeline.  But that is not in this

          5  legislation, so that is an amendment that we may

          6  consider in the future.  Is that the idea?

          7                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Yes, I mean,

          8  Councilwoman, I think you know we try, and I think

          9  both Councilman Koppell and his issue of how this

         10  gets tracked and then snagged is really important,

         11  and we should work out very good language so it is

         12  workable.  And I think the position, we should look

         13  at everything because it is going so fast, and then

         14  how to word it so you do not cut off your, you know,

         15  you want to do some economic, and so we are happy to

         16  sit down and figure out how to put that together.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  We are all happy

         18  to do this.  If you could just answer briefly for

         19  me, if there is a small, are you considering, and

         20  that is why we are sort of asking what your vision

         21  is as opposed to what the technicalities is, because

         22  everybody knows this would go through amendments and

         23  we all understand that. And that is really why I

         24  keep, I am very careful in keeping, to use the term

         25  envisioning as opposed to technical.
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          2                 The idea, there are two issues that I

          3  was a little concerned about and just want to know

          4  whether the drafters of the bill would be up for

          5  discussion, which would be:

          6                 Number one, there are a lot of

          7  irregular lots, and lots too small to develop that

          8  may be in zones appropriate for affordable housing,

          9  that is number one.  And I am wondering if that

         10  would be an exemption that you are envisioning, or

         11  how you would, I guess, set the standard for that.

         12                 And the second thing would be, let's

         13  just say that there are vacant lots in R- 1 and R-

         14  2.  I am assuming that for R- 1 and R- 2, for

         15  instance, you would not be envisioning these

         16  standards on those lots.

         17                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  Right.  I mean, when

         18  we did the study, if you look at the ACORN study, we

         19  actually look, we did not go to R- 1 and R- 2,

         20  because it was very, you know, and then there are,

         21  you get these weird shapes all the time.  Now

         22  sometimes weird shapes are actually buildable in

         23  part, so it varies.  And again, we would have to

         24  figure out, like you said, a mechanism, like what

         25  are the criteria for, you know, being exempt or not.
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          2    But we started with R- 4, okay.  So actually when

          3  we look and we tell you that 1,350 lots have been

          4  auctioned, you know, there is a set that are lots in

          5  our neighborhood, but when we put the plan together

          6  to HPD to say that this is actually a workable way

          7  of doing development, we only parceled for them the

          8  R- 4s and higher, yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  And I guess piece

         10  by piece if there is an R- 4 that was an irregular

         11  shape that could not be, that would be part of the

         12  criteria that we would develop with the amendments

         13  of the bill.  Any other questions?

         14                 Okay, if anyone in the audience that

         15  is here, if anyone would like to testify, please

         16  tell the Sergeant- At- Arms.  If you are here for

         17  moral support, we love having you here for moral

         18  support.  We appreciate, I know there are two people

         19  testifying so far, and that is fine, if everyone

         20  else is here for moral support, we love having you

         21  in the City Council and in City Hall.  And we

         22  appreciate that you made the time to come down here,

         23  and it does help.  So thank you for being here

         24  today.

         25                 Bertha, did you want to say one more
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          2  thing, did you?

          3                 MS. LEWIS:  No, I just wanted to say

          4  there are two other folks who are here to testify

          5  that actually live this every day, and I would just

          6  like, before the hearing ended to hear from them,

          7  Valerie Holder and Bernard Stevens were Leaders of

          8  the Neighborhoods for Sale Affordable Housing

          9  Campaign.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Those names happen

         11  to match my list, this is uncanny, we work well

         12  together, there you go.

         13                 MS. SPELIOTIS:  And we want to thank

         14  you for hearing our testimony.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you.  I want

         16  to, once again, apologize to my colleagues for the

         17  time issue and thank them for staying for the

         18  testimony.

         19                 MS. HOLDER:  Good morning.  My name

         20  is Valerie Holder, I am President of ACORN Housing

         21  and the New York ACORN Political Action Committee.

         22  I have lived in both Crown Heights and Flatbush

         23  neighborhoods of Brooklyn.

         24                 I have seen hundreds of lots in Crown

         25  Heights and other neighborhoods vacant for years
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          2  filled with trash and bringing down our blocks.  At

          3  the same time, in the past couple of years I have

          4  seen many of these lots get bought by private

          5  developers, many through City auctions.

          6                 Now the houses being built on these

          7  lots are for people with income twice as high as our

          8  neighborhood median income. And this housing is

          9  supposedly affordable according to the City's

         10  guidelines.

         11                 Flatbush, a neighborhood that is

         12  densely populated with little vacant land.  It is

         13  also impacted by the City's land policies.  The

         14  affordable housing crisis affects all of us, as low-

         15  and moderate- income working families.  And the less

         16  affordable housing there is, the more overcrowded

         17  and expensive our housing is.

         18                 Intro. 517 would attract real

         19  affordable housing guidelines and a real timeline.

         20  The City needs to have real affordable housing

         21  policy for this end.  I urge you to consider and

         22  pass Intro. 517.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  Thank you very

         24  much for your testimony.  Sir?  If you could

         25  identify yourself as well, that would be great.
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          2                 MR. STEVENS:  Good morning, everyone.

          3    My name is Bernard Stevens and I am an ACORN Board

          4  member living in East Flatbush.  I am deeply

          5  concerned about the City's policy on vacant lots.

          6  These policies affect all of us who need affordable

          7  housing. As we all know, we are in a severe housing

          8  crisis.

          9                 In my neighborhood there is a

         10  terrible shortage for housing for moderate- income

         11  families, hardworking people who are concerned about

         12  our communities, people like me are passed over. All

         13  the while developers sits on vacant lots that should

         14  be used for housing.

         15                 If this bill is passed, it will go a

         16  long way in our fight for affordable housing.

         17  Affordable is not the home for $500,000, with the

         18  median income set at $75,000.  Affordable is not

         19  $1,500 a month for a one- bedroom.  These are the

         20  kind of prices on housing that comes from public

         21  land auction.

         22                 We need you to help us to represent

         23  the real New Yorkers, do not let the land that is

         24  left, go to market.  Please attach affordability

         25  guidelines and develop median timetables on public
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          2  land.

          3                 That I just read from what was given

          4  to me from ACORN.  And if I may, I would like to

          5  really take this time to tell you, I have been an

          6  employee for New York for 15 years working in Human

          7  Resource Administration, trying to live and do what

          8  people like you do, be productive members of

          9  society.  I was faced with health challenges about

         10  three years ago, and had to apply for Social

         11  Security Disability.  My income is now a little less

         12  than $1,200 a month.  Of that I pay $900 for rent,

         13  and that does not even include utility, that is my

         14  reality.  I live this every day.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  We appreciate your

         16  being here, and it means a lot to all of us that you

         17  have both taken your time to come here.  And I do

         18  not think that you can prove in any other that you

         19  are active members of society.  And if more people

         20  came down here and spoke to us, and issued their

         21  opinions and told us, really what reality is,

         22  because sometimes you need folks that live it to

         23  describe it.  So we are very proud that you were

         24  down here with us today.

         25                 MR. STEVENS:  Thank you very much.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  And we thank you

          3  very much.

          4                 MR. STEVENS:  Thank you.

          5                 MS. HOLDER:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON KATZ:  For being here.

          7  Any of the Council members have questions?  Anyone

          8  else in the audience? Okay, I would like to, before

          9  we close this hearing, just say a few comments.

         10                 Number one, I think that we got a lot

         11  of interesting questions from the Council members,

         12  and the responses from ACORN and from those folks

         13  that came down to testify, I think, leave a lot to

         14  be thought about as far as amending the bill, and

         15  also the idea that everybody wants affordable

         16  housing in this city.  It is one of the top issues

         17  for the New York City Council.  And as many of you

         18  know that are here, we have been working very

         19  closely with so many people about creating

         20  affordable housing.  So we look forward to

         21  continuing these hearings and also continuing the

         22  topic, number one.

         23                 Number two, we were just talking

         24  about the fact that this may be also an interesting

         25  tour for some of the Council members that are up
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          2  here, to go out and see some of these vacant land.

          3  Mr. Stevens and Ms. Holder talked about vacant

          4  pieces of properties in their areas, and I know that

          5  ACORN and HPD, we can a list from HPD of the most

          6  vacant lots that are in the City, and perhaps, that

          7  might be an interesting tour for this Committee, if

          8  folks are interested in going.  I know I would be,

          9  so I would look forward to that.

         10                 We want to know what the signs say,

         11  the bags, what do the bags say?  Oh it is part of

         12  the land, can we build on that? All right, we do

         13  appreciate all of you coming down here, moral

         14  support is always great.  It lets us know you are

         15  out there, it makes us feel less lonely up here, and

         16  we appreciate any time you come to City Hall to be

         17  part of the process.

         18                 The meeting is adjourned.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 11:30 a.m.)
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